

Wealth Management

THE NEW STANDARD IN WEALTH MANAGEMENT



A series of Wall Street EWM Funds Trust

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

April 30, 2025

55 East 52nd Street, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10055 Telephone: 1-800-443-4693 http://www.evercoreequityfund.com Email: evercoreequityfund@evercore.com

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus but should be read in conjunction with the prospectus of The Evercore Equity Fund (the "Fund"), dated April 30, 2025 (the "Prospectus").

The audited financial statements for the Fund for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 are incorporated herein by reference to the Fund's Core Financial Statements as part of Form <u>N-CSR</u>, filed electronically with the SEC on March 10, 2025. The Prospectus and Annual Report are available on the fund's website at the link above or may be obtained, without charge and upon request, by writing to the above address or by calling the above phone number.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION	1
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES	2
RISKS	6
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	13
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	16
CODE OF ETHICS	20
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF FUND SECURITIES	20
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	21
PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION	22
TAX ASPECTS	23
PRINCIPAL UNDERWRITER	27
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	27
PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION SERVICES	28
SHARE PURCHASES	28
REDEMPTION OF SHARES	29
ABANDONED PROPERTY	30
INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES	30
PROXY VOTING GUIDELINES	35
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM	36
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	38
APPENDIX A – DESCRIPTION OF BOND RATINGS	A-1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Evercore Equity Fund (the "Fund") is the sole series of Wall Street EWM Funds Trust (the "Trust"). The Trust was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on April 12, 2011. The Fund is the successor in interest to The Wall Street Fund, Inc. (the "Predecessor Fund"). Effective as of the close of business on October 1, 2014, the Predecessor Fund, which had substantially the same investment objective and policies and the same investment adviser, Evercore Wealth Management, LLC (the "Adviser"), as the Fund, transferred its assets to the Fund in exchange for shares of the Fund and the Fund's assumption of the Predecessor Fund's liabilities. The Fund has adopted the prior performance and financial history of the Predecessor Fund. On March 1, 2016, the Fund's name changed from "The Wall Street Fund" to "Evercore Equity Fund."

The Trust has entered into contractual arrangements with various parties (collectively, "service providers") on behalf of the Fund, including among others, the Adviser, custodian, transfer agent, and accountants, who provide services to the Fund. Shareholders are not parties to any such contractual arrangements and those contractual arrangements are not intended to create in any shareholder any right to enforce them directly against the service providers or to seek any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or indirectly on behalf of the Trust.

The Prospectus and this SAI provide information concerning the Fund that you should consider in determining whether to purchase Fund shares. Neither the Prospectus nor this SAI is intended, or should be read, to be or create an agreement or contract between the Trust or the Fund and any investor, or to create to any rights in any shareholder or other person other than any rights under federal or state law that may not be waived.

The Trust may add additional new series at any time. The Trust is authorized to issue an unlimited number of interests (or shares). Interests in the Fund are represented by shares of beneficial interest each with no par value. Once the Trust has more than one series, each series will have equal voting rights and liquidation rights, and shares will be voted in the aggregate and not by the series, except in matters where a separate vote is required by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("1940 Act"), or when the matters affect only the interest of a particular series. When matters are submitted to shareholders for a vote, each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each full share owned and fractional votes for fractional shares owned. The Trust does not hold annual meetings of shareholders. The Board of Trustees of the Trust (the "Board of Trustees") shall promptly call and give notice of a meeting of shareholders for the purpose of voting upon removal of any trustee when requested to do so in writing by shareholders holding 10% or more of the Trust's outstanding shares.

Each share of the Fund represents an equal proportionate interest in the assets and liabilities belonging to the Fund and is entitled to such distributions out of the income belonging to the Fund as are declared by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees has the authority from time to time to divide or combine the shares of any series into a greater or lesser number of shares of that series so long as the proportionate beneficial interests in the assets belonging to that series and the rights of shares of any other series are in no way affected. Additionally, in case of any liquidation of a series, the holders of shares of the series being liquidated are entitled to receive a distribution out of the assets, net of the liabilities, belonging to that series. Expenses attributable to any series are borne by that series. Any general expenses of the Trust not readily identifiable as belonging to a particular series are allocated by, or under the direction of, the Board of Trustees on the basis of relative net assets, number of shareholders or other equitable method. No shareholder is liable to further calls or to assessment by the Trust without his or her express consent.

The assets of the Fund received for the issue or sale of its shares, and all income, earnings, profits and proceeds thereof, subject only to the rights of creditors, shall constitute the underlying assets of the Fund. In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Fund, the holders of shares of the Fund are entitled to share pro rata in the net assets of the Fund available for distribution to shareholders. The fiscal year of the Fund ends on December 31 of each year.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Fund is a diversified open-end, investment management company. In order to achieve the "longterm growth of capital" stated as its investment objective in the section of the Prospectus titled, "Investment Objective and Policies, Principal Investment Strategies, Related Risks and Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings," the management of the Fund looks for undervalued investments in well-managed companies with sustainable earnings growth, thoughtful capital allocation, minimal or moderate debt, and valuable products or services. Financial ratios such as superior profit margins, return on equity and capital, and cash flow as well as anticipated earnings growth are essential criteria. The ability to control risk is vital to meet the Fund's investment objective. Accordingly, prudent portfolio diversification is stressed.

Investment Policies. The Fund invests principally in a diversified portfolio of common stocks. The Fund normally invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) in equity securities. The Fund will not change this policy without providing shareholders at least 60 days written notice. The Fund may also invest in corporate bonds and securities of the U.S. Government or its agencies subject to its investment restrictions and diversification status. The Fund does not invest in debt securities as a principal investment strategy. The Fund will purchase corporate bonds rated no lower than investment grade, BBB by S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") and Baa3 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"). See Appendix A to this SAI for further information regarding S&P and Moody's ratings. Investment grade bonds possess some speculative characteristics. The Fund may also purchase unrated bonds when in the opinion of the investment adviser such investments are of comparable quality. The Fund may invest in companies of any size. The Adviser uses fundamental analysis to analyze and invest in a portfolio mixture of small, medium and large size companies, subject to the Fund's investment restrictions and diversification status.

Equity Securities. The Fund may invest in equity securities. Equity securities generally entitle the holder to participate in a company's general operating results. The purchaser of an equity security typically receives an ownership interest in the company as well as certain voting rights. The owner of an equity security may participate in a company's success through the receipt of dividends that are distributions of earnings by the company to its owners. Equity security owners may also participate in a company's success or lack of success through increases or decreases in the value of the company's shares as traded in the public trading market for such shares. Equity securities may include, among others, common stock, preferred stock, securities convertible into common stock, rights, warrants, and shares of real estate investment trusts ("REITs").

Preferred stock has certain fixed-income features, like a bond, but actually is an equity security that is senior to a company's common stock. Preferred stock generally has a preference to dividends and, upon liquidation, over an issuer's common stock but ranks junior to debt securities in an issuer's capital structure. Preferred stock generally pays dividends in cash (or additional shares of preferred stock) at a defined rate but, unlike interest payments on debt securities, preferred stock dividends are payable only if declared by the issuer's board of directors. Preferred shareholders may have certain

rights if dividends are not paid but generally have no legal recourse against the issuer. Shareholders may suffer a loss of value if dividends are not paid. The market prices of preferred stocks are generally more sensitive to changes in the issuer's creditworthiness than are the prices of debt securities.

Warrants are options to purchase equity securities at specific prices valid for a specific period of time. Their prices do not necessarily move parallel to the prices of the underlying equity securities. Rights are similar to warrants, but normally have a shorter maturity and are distributed directly by the issuer to its shareholders. Rights and warrants have no voting rights, receive no dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer.

Corporate Bonds. The Fund may invest in corporate bonds. Corporate bonds represent an obligation of the corporate issuer to repay a loan of money to it, and generally, provides for the payment of interest. A corporate bond or debt security typically has a fixed payment schedule that obligates the issuer to pay interest to the lender and to return the lender's money over a certain time period. A company typically meets its payment obligations associated with its outstanding bonds before it declares and pays any dividend to holders of its equity securities. Bonds and other debt securities, such as notes, debentures, and commercial paper differ in the length of the issuer's payment schedule, with bonds carrying the longest repayment schedule and commercial paper the shortest.

The market value of corporate bonds and other debt securities generally varies in response to changes in interest rates and the financial condition of each issuer. During periods of declining interest rates, the value of a bond generally increases. Conversely, during periods of rising interest rates, the value of such securities generally declines. These changes in market value will be reflected in the Fund's net asset value ("NAV") per share.

Convertible Securities. The Fund may invest in convertible securities. A convertible security is generally a debt obligation or preferred stock that may be converted into or exchanged for a certain amount of common stock or other equity security of the same or a different issuer. A convertible security provides a fixed-income stream and the opportunity, through its conversion feature, to participate in the capital appreciation resulting from a market price advance in its underlying common stock. As with a straight fixed-income security, a convertible security tends to increase in market value when interest rates decline and decrease in value when interest rates rise. Like a common stock, the value of a convertible security also tends to increase as the market value of the underlying stock rises, and it tends to decrease as the market value of the underlying stock declines. Because its value can be influenced by both interest rate and market movements, a convertible security is not as sensitive to interest rates as a similar fixed-income security, nor is it as sensitive to changes in share price as its underlying stock.

A convertible security is usually issued either by an operating company or by an investment bank. When issued by an operating company, a convertible security tends to be senior to common stock, but subordinate to other types of fixed-income securities issued by that company. When a convertible security issued by an operating company is "converted," the operating company often issues new stock to the holder of the convertible security but, if the parity price of the convertible security is less than the call price, the operating company may pay out cash instead of common stock. If the convertible security is issued by an investment bank, the security is an obligation of and is convertible through the issuing investment bank.

The issuer of a convertible security may be important in determining the security's true value. This is because the holder of a convertible security will have recourse only to the issuer. As such, the credit

standing of the issuer and other factors may have an effect on the convertible security's investment value. In addition, a convertible security may be subject to redemption by the issuer, but only after a specified date and under circumstances established at the time the security is issued. If a convertible security held by the Fund is called for redemption, the Fund will be required to permit the issuer to redeem the security, convert it into underlying common stock or sell it to a third party.

While the Fund uses the same criteria to rate a convertible debt security that it uses to rate a more conventional debt security, a convertible preferred stock is treated like a preferred stock for the fund's financial reporting, credit rating, and investment limitation purposes. A preferred stock is subordinated to all debt obligations in the event of insolvency, and an issuer's failure to make a dividend payment is generally not an event of default entitling the preferred shareholder to take action. A preferred stock generally has no maturity date, so that its market value is dependent on the issuer's business prospects for an indefinite period of time. In addition, distributions on preferred stock are dividends, rather than interest payments, and are usually treated as such for federal income tax purposes.

REITs. The Fund may invest a portion of its assets in equity securities of REITs, which invest in incomeproducing real estate and derive income primarily from rental and lease payments as well as through property sales and/or mortgages thereon that generate interest income. REITs generally offer investors greater liquidity and diversification than direct ownership of real estate, as well as greater income potential than an investment in common stocks.

Unlike most corporations (and trusts and associations otherwise taxable as such for federal tax purposes), REITs do not have to pay federal income tax on net income and net realized gains they distribute to their shareholders if they meet certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). To qualify for that treatment, a REIT must, among other things, (1) distribute to its shareholders for each taxable year at least 90% of the sum of its "real estate investment trust taxable income" (not including net capital gains) and certain other income and (2) derive at least 75% of its gross income each taxable year from rents from real property, interest on obligations secured by mortgages on real property, gains from the disposition of real property or such obligations, and certain other real estate related income. The failure of a company in which the Fund invests to qualify as a REIT under federal tax law may have an adverse impact on the Fund. Similar treatment may also apply to REIT-like entities under the laws of the countries in which they were formed. Please see "Risks - REITs Investment Risk" for more information.

Foreign Securities. The Fund may purchase securities issued by companies organized in foreign countries provided that, as a result of any such purchase, not more than 20% of the value of the Fund's total assets will be represented by such securities. Securities of companies located outside of the U.S. may offer significant profit opportunities, and therefore, the Fund may invest in foreign securities if these investments are consistent with the Fund's investment objective and policies.

The Fund may also buy the securities of foreign issuers directly in foreign markets, and may buy the securities of issuers in developing nations. Please see "Risks - Foreign Securities Risk" for more information.

American Depositary Receipts. Many securities of foreign issuers are represented by American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"). ADRs evidence ownership of, and represent the right to receive, securities of foreign issuers deposited in a domestic bank or trust company or a foreign correspondent bank. Generally, ADRs in registered form are designed for use in the U.S. securities market and ADRs in

bearer form are designed for use in securities markets outside the U.S. Please see "Risks - American Depositary Receipts Risk" for more information.

Prices of ADRs are quoted in U.S. dollars, and ADRs are traded in the U.S. on exchanges or over-thecounter. While ADRs do not eliminate all the risk associated with foreign investments, by investing in ADRs rather than directly in the stock of foreign issuers, the Fund will avoid currency risks during the settlement period for either purchases or sales. In general, there is a large, liquid market in the U.S. for ADRs quoted on a national securities exchange or on NASDAQ. The information available for ADRs is subject to the accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards of the U.S. market or exchange on which they are traded, which standards are more uniform and more exacting than those to which many foreign issuers may be subject.

ADRs may be issued under sponsored or unsponsored programs. In sponsored programs, an issuer has made arrangements to have its securities traded in the form of an ADR. In unsponsored programs, the issuer may not be directly involved in the creation of the program. Although regulatory requirements with respect to sponsored and unsponsored programs are generally similar, in some cases it may be easier to obtain financial information from an issuer that has participated in the creation of a sponsored program. Accordingly, there may be less information available regarding issuers of securities underlying unsponsored programs and there may not be a correlation between this information and the market value of the ADR.

Illiquid Securities. The Fund may invest in the aggregate a maximum of 15% of its net assets in illiquid securities, measured at the time of the investment. Generally, an illiquid security is an investment that is not readily marketable (*i.e.*, it cannot reasonably be expected to be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value). Illiquid securities may include unregistered or other restricted securities, such as Rule 144A securities (restricted securities that may be traded freely among qualified institutional buyers pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the securities laws) and repurchase agreements maturing in more than seven days. Generally, foreign securities freely tradable in their principal market are not considered restricted or illiquid even if they are not registered in the United States.

Temporary Investments. In anticipation of and during temporary defensive periods or when investments of the type in which the Fund intends to invest are not available at prices that the manager believes are attractive, the Fund may invest up to 100% of its total assets in: (1) securities of the U.S. government and certain of its agencies and instrumentalities that mature in one year or less from the date of purchase, including U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds, and securities of the Government National Mortgage Association, the Federal Housing Administration and other agency or instrumentality issues or guarantees that are supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government; (2) obligations issued or guaranteed by other U.S. government agencies or instrumentalities, some of which are supported by the right of the issuer to borrow from the U.S. government (e.g., obligations of the Federal Home Loan Banks) and some of which are backed by the credit of the issuer itself (e.g., obligations of the Student Loan Marketing Association); (3) bank obligations, including negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit (subject to the 15% aggregate limit on the Fund's investment in illiquid securities), letters of credit and bankers' acceptances, or instruments secured by these types of obligations, issued by banks and savings institutions that are subject to regulation by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities and that have assets of over \$1 billion, unless these types of obligations are guaranteed by a parent bank that has total assets in excess of \$5 billion; (4) commercial paper considered by the manager to be of high quality, which must be rated within the two highest rating categories by S&P or Moody's or, if unrated, issued by a company having an outstanding debt issue rated at least AA by S&P or Aa by Moody's; (5) corporate obligations including, but not limited to, corporate notes, bonds and debentures considered by the manager to be high grade or that are rated within the two highest rating categories by S&P or Moody's; and (6) money market funds.

RISKS

There is no assurance that the Fund will meet its investment objective. Investments in securities that have potential to increase in value may be subject to a greater degree of risk and may be more volatile than other types of investments.

The value of your shares will increase as the value of the securities owned by the Fund increases and will decrease as the value of the Fund's investments decrease. In this way, you participate in any change in the value of the securities owned by the Fund. In addition to the factors that affect the value of any particular security that the Fund owns, the value of Fund shares may also change with movements in the stock market as a whole.

The following discussion on risks should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus.

Equity Securities Risk. While equity securities historically have provided the greatest long-term growth potential in a company, stock markets are volatile, and the prices of equity securities generally fluctuate more than other securities and reflect changes in a company's financial condition as well as general market, economic and political conditions and other factors. The value of an equity security may also be affected by changes in financial markets that are relatively unrelated to the issuing company or its industry, such as changes in interest rates or currency exchange rates. Common stocks generally represent the riskiest investment in a company. Even investments in high quality or "blue chip" equity securities or securities of established companies with large market capitalizations (which generally have strong financial characteristics) can be negatively impacted by poor economic conditions. It is possible that the Fund may experience a substantial or complete loss on an individual equity investment. While this is also possible with bonds, it is less likely.

Dividend Risk. Securities that pay high dividends as a group can fall out of favor with the market, causing their issuers to underperform companies that do not pay high dividends. An issuer of stock held by the Fund may choose not to declare a dividend, or the dividend rate might not remain at current levels. Changes in the dividend policies of companies whose shares are owned by the Fund and the capital resources available for these companies' dividend payments may reduce the level of dividend payments and adversely affect the Fund. Dividend paying stocks also may not experience the same level of earnings growth or capital appreciation as non-dividend paying stocks.

Foreign Securities Risk. The value of foreign (and U.S.) securities is affected by general economic conditions and individual company and industry earnings prospects. While foreign securities may offer significant opportunities for gain, they also involve additional risks that can increase the potential for losses in the Fund. These risks can be significantly greater for investments in developing countries. Investments in ADRs also involve some or all of the risks described below.

There is the possibility of cessation of trading on national exchanges, expropriation, nationalization of assets, confiscatory or punitive taxation, withholding and other foreign taxes on income or other amounts, foreign exchange controls (which may include suspension of the ability to transfer currency

from a given country), restrictions on removal of assets, political or social instability, or diplomatic developments that could affect investments in securities of issuers in foreign nations. Foreign securities are subject to the risks associated with the potential imposition of economic or other sanctions against a particular foreign country, its nationals, businesses or industries, which could adversely affect the value of the Fund's investments.

There may be less publicly available information about foreign companies comparable to the reports and ratings published about companies in the U.S. Foreign companies are not generally subject to uniform accounting or financial reporting standards, and auditing practices and requirements may not be comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies. The Fund, therefore, may encounter difficulty in obtaining market quotations for purposes of valuing its portfolio and calculating its NAV.

Certain countries' financial markets and services are less developed than those in the U.S. or other major economies. In many foreign countries there is less government supervision and regulation of stock exchanges, brokers, and listed companies than in the U.S. Foreign markets have substantially less volume than the U.S. markets and securities of some foreign companies are less liquid and more volatile than securities of comparable U.S. companies. Commission rates in foreign countries, which are generally fixed rather than subject to negotiation as in the U.S., are likely to be higher. Settlement practices may be cumbersome and result in delays that may affect portfolio liquidity. The Fund may have greater difficulty voting proxies, exercising shareholder rights, pursuing legal remedies, and obtaining judgments with respect to foreign investments in foreign courts than with respect to domestic issuers in U.S. courts.

The Fund's investments in foreign securities may increase the risks with respect to the liquidity of the Fund's portfolio. This could inhibit the Fund's ability to meet a large number of shareholder redemption requests in the event of economic or political turmoil in a country in which the Fund has a substantial portion of its assets invested or deterioration in relations between the U.S. and the foreign country.

Investments in companies domiciled in developing countries may be subject to potentially higher risks than investments in developed countries. These risks include (i) less economic stability; (ii) political and social uncertainty (for example, regional conflicts and risk of war); (iii) pervasiveness of corruption and crime; (iv) the small current size of the markets for such securities and the currently low or nonexistent volume of trading, which result in a lack of liquidity and in greater price volatility; (v) delays in settling portfolio transactions; (vi) risk of loss arising out of the system of share registration and custody; (vii) certain national policies that may restrict the fund's investment opportunities, including restrictions on investment in issuers or industries deemed sensitive to national interests; (viii) foreign taxation; (ix) the absence of developed legal structures governing private or foreign investment or allowing for judicial redress for injury to private property; (x) the absence of a capital market structure or market-oriented economy; and (xi) the possibility that any favorable economic developments may be slowed or reversed by unanticipated political or social events.

In addition, many countries in which the Fund may invest have experienced substantial, and in some periods extremely high, rates of inflation for many years. Inflation and rapid fluctuations in inflation rates have had and may continue to have negative effects on the economies and securities markets of certain countries. Moreover, the economies of some developing countries may differ favorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in such respects as growth of gross domestic product, rate of inflation, currency depreciation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency, and balance of payments position.

American Depositary Receipts Risk. ADRs reduce but do not eliminate all the risk inherent in investing in the securities of foreign issuers. To the extent that the Fund acquires ADRs through banks that do not have a contractual relationship with the foreign issuer of the security underlying the ADR to issue and service such ADRs, there may be an increased possibility that the Fund would not become aware of and be able to respond to corporate actions such as stock splits or rights offerings involving the foreign issuer in a timely manner.

Currency Risk. Investments in foreign currencies are subject to the risk that those currencies will decline in value relative to the U.S. dollar. Any such decline may erode or reverse any potential gains from an investment in securities denominated in foreign currency or may widen existing loss. Currency rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates, intervention (or the failure to intervene) by governments, central banks or supranational entities, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments in the U.S. or abroad.

Cyber Security Risk. With the increased use of technologies such as the Internet to conduct business, the Fund is susceptible to operational, information security and related risks. In general, cyber incidents can result from deliberate attacks or unintentional events. Cyber attacks include, but are not limited to, gaining unauthorized access to digital systems (e.g., through "hacking" or malicious software coding) for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive information, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption. Cyber attacks may also be carried out in a manner that does not require gaining unauthorized access, such as causing denial-of-service attacks on websites (i.e., efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users). Cyber security failures or breaches by the Adviser and other service providers (including, but not limited to, Fund accountants, custodians, transfer agents and administrators), and the issuers of securities in which the Fund invests, have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, interference with the Fund's ability to calculate its net asset value, impediments to trading, the inability of Fund shareholders to transact business, violations of applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or additional compliance costs. In addition, substantial costs may be incurred in order to prevent any cyber incidents in the future. While the Fund has established business continuity plans in the event of, and risk management systems to prevent, such cyber attacks, there are inherent limitations in such plans and systems including the possibility that certain risks have not been identified. Furthermore, the Fund cannot control the cyber security plans and systems put in place by service providers to the Fund and issuers in which the Fund invests. The Fund and its shareholders could be negatively impacted as a result.

REITs Investment Risk: REITs are subject to real estate industry risk. Investing in REITs exposes investors to the risks of owning real estate directly, as well as to risks that relate specifically to the way in which REITS are organized and operated. Equity REITs, which generally invest directly in real estate, may be affected by changes in the value of the underlying property owned by the REIT, while

mortgage REITs, which invest in mortgages secured by interests in real estate, may be affected by the quality of any credit extended. Risks may include the following: declines in the value of real estate; risks related to general and local economic conditions; possible lack of availability of mortgage funds; lack of ability to access the credit or capital markets; overbuilding; extended vacancies of properties; defaults by borrowers or tenants, particularly during an economic downturn; increasing competition; increases in property taxes and operating expenses; changes in zoning laws; losses due to costs resulting from the clean-up of environmental problems; liability to third parties for damages resulting from environmental problems; casualty or condemnation losses; limitations on rents; changes in market and sub-market values and the appeal of properties to tenants; and changes in interest rates. In general, real estate values can be affected by a variety of factors, including changes in demographic trends, supply and demand for properties, the economic health of the country as well as different regions, and the strength of specific industries that rent properties. Ultimately, an individual REIT's performance depends on the types and locations for the properties it owns and on how well the REIT manages its properties. For instance, rental income could decline because of extended vacancies, increased competition from nearby properties, tenants' failures to pay rent, or incompetent management. Property values could decrease because of overbuilding in the area, environmental liabilities, uninsured damages caused by natural disasters, a general decline in the neighborhood, losses due to casualty or condemnation, increases in property taxes, or changes in zoning laws. Moreover, shares of REITs may trade less frequently and, therefore, are subject to more erratic price movements than securities of larger issuers. Domestic REITs could be adversely affected by failure to gualify for tax-free "pass-through" of distributed net income and net realized gains under the Code or to maintain their exemption from registration under the 1940 Act.

REITs are also subject to interest rate risk. REIT stock prices overall will decline over short or even long periods because of rising interest rates. In general, during periods of high interest rate risks, REITs may lose some of their appeal for investors who may be able to obtain higher yields from other income-producing investments. Higher interest rates also mean that financing for real estate purchases and improvements may be more costly and difficult to obtain.

REITs tend to be small or medium-size companies. Because small and mid-cap stocks are typically less liquid than large-cap stocks, REIT stocks may sometimes experience greater share-price fluctuation than the stocks of larger companies. REITs are pooled investment vehicles with their own fees and expenses and the Fund will indirectly bear its proportionate share of those fees and expenses.

U.S. Government Obligations. The Fund may invest in various types of U.S. government obligations. U.S. government obligations include securities issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. government and supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. U.S. government obligations differ mainly in the length of their maturity. Treasury bills, the most frequently issued marketable government securities, have a maturity of up to one year and are issued on a discount basis. U.S. government obligations also include securities issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or instrumentalities, including government-sponsored enterprises ("GSEs"). Some obligations of such agencies or U.S. Treasury guarantees. Other obligations of such agencies or instrumentalities of the U.S. government are supported by the right of the issuer or guarantor to borrow from the U.S. Treasury. Others are supported by the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase certain obligations of the agency or instrumentality issuing the obligation.

In the case of obligations not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, the investor must look principally to the agency or instrumentality issuing or guaranteeing the obligation for ultimate repayment, which agency or instrumentality may be privately owned. There can be no assurance that the U.S. government would provide financial support to its agencies or instrumentalities (including GSEs) where it is not obligated to do so. In addition, U.S. government obligations are subject to fluctuations in market value due to fluctuations in market interest rates. As a general matter, the value of debt instruments, including U.S. government obligations, declines when market interest rates increase and rises when market interest rates decrease. Certain types of U.S. government obligations are subject to fluctuations in yield or value due to their structure or contract terms.

Debt Securities Rating Risk. The use of credit ratings in evaluating debt securities can involve certain risks. Ratings represent the rating agency's opinion regarding the quality of the security and are not a guarantee of quality. A credit rating may not reflect the issuer's current financial condition or events since the security was last rated by a rating agency. Credit ratings also may be influenced by conflicts of interest. Proposed legislation and regulations to reform rating agencies may adversely impact the Fund's investments or investment process.

Interest Rate Risk. To the extent the Fund invests in bonds or other debt securities, changes in interest rates will affect the value of the Fund's portfolio and its share price. Changes in interest rates may affect the yield, liquidity and value of investments in income producing or debt securities. Changes in interest rates also may affect the value of other securities. When interest rates decline, the value of the Fund's investments in bonds or other debt securities generally rises. Conversely, rising interest rates, which often occur during times of inflation or a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the value of the Fund's shares. In general, bonds or other debt securities having longer durations are more sensitive to interest rate changes than are bonds with shorter durations. A significant or rapid rise in interest rates could result in losses to the Fund.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a security might not make interest and principal payments on the security as they become due. If an issuer fails to pay interest, the Fund's income might be reduced, and if an issuer fails to repay principal, the value of the security might fall and the Fund could lose the amount of its investment in the security. The extent of this risk varies based on the terms of the particular security and the financial condition of the issuer. A downgrade in an issuer's credit rating or other adverse news about an issuer can reduce the market value of that issuer's securities.

Liquidity Risk. Certain securities held by the Fund may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time and at the price the Fund would like due to a variety of factors, including general market conditions, the perceived financial strength of the issuer, or specific restrictions on resale of the securities. Consequently, the Fund may have to hold these securities longer than it would like and may forgo other investment opportunities. It also is possible that the Fund could lose money or be prevented from realizing capital gains if it cannot sell a security at the time and price that is most beneficial to the Fund. Lack of liquidity may impact valuation of such securities and the Fund's NAV adversely, especially during times of financial distress. In addition, the Fund may not be able to raise cash when needed or may be forced to sell other investments to raise cash, which could impact the Fund's performance negatively. Infrequent trading of securities also may lead to an increase in their price volatility. Liquidity is a general investment risk that potentially could impact any security, but funds that invest in foreign securities, particularly those of issuers located in emerging markets, unregistered or other restricted securities, such as Rule 144A securities, or certain small-company securities, which

all have experienced periods of illiquidity, generally are subject to greater liquidity risk than funds that do not invest in these types of securities.

Recent Market Conditions. Both U.S. and international markets have experienced significant volatility in recent years. As a result of such volatility, investment returns may fluctuate significantly. National economies are substantially interconnected, as are global financial markets, which creates the possibility that conditions in one country or region might adversely impact issuers in a different country or region. However, the interconnectedness of economies and/or markets may be diminishing or changing, which may impact such economies and markets in ways that cannot be foreseen at this time.

Although interest rates were unusually low in recent years in the U.S. and abroad, in 2022, the Federal Reserve and certain foreign central banks raised interest rates as part of their efforts to address rising inflation. The Federal Reserve and certain foreign central banks have started to lower interest rates, though economic or other factors, such as inflation, could stop such changes. It is difficult to accurately predict the pace at which interest rates might change, the timing, frequency or magnitude of any such changes in interest rates, or when such changes might stop or again reverse course. Additionally, various economic and political factors could cause the Federal Reserve or other foreign central banks to change their approach in the future and such actions may result in an economic slowdown both in the U.S. and abroad. Unexpected changes in interest rates could lead to significant market volatility or reduce liquidity in certain sectors of the market. Deteriorating economic fundamentals may, in turn, increase the risk of default or insolvency of particular issuers, negatively impact market value, cause credit spreads to widen, and reduce bank balance sheets. Any of these could cause an increase in market volatility, reduce liquidity across various markets or decrease confidence in the markets. Also, regulators have expressed concern that changes in interest rates may cause investors to sell fixed income securities faster than the market can absorb them, contributing to price volatility. Historical patterns of correlation among asset classes may break down in unanticipated ways during times of high volatility, disrupting investment programs and potentially causing losses.

Some countries, including the U.S., have adopted more protectionist trade policies, which is a trend that appears to be continuing globally. Slowing global economic growth, the rise in protectionist trade policies, inflationary pressures, changes to some major international trade agreements, risks associated with the trade agreement between countries and regions, including the U.S. and other foreign nations, political or economic dysfunction within some countries or regions, including the U.S., and dramatic changes in commodity and currency prices could affect the economies of many nations in ways that cannot necessarily be foreseen at the present time. In addition, if the U.S. dollar continues to be strong, it may decrease foreign demand for U.S. assets, which could have a negative impact on certain issuers and/or industries.

Regulators in the U.S. adopted a number of changes to regulations involving the markets and issuers, some of which implicate a Fund. The full effect of various newly adopted regulations is not currently known. Due to the scope of regulations being adopted, certain of these changes to regulation could limit a Fund's ability to pursue its investment strategies or make certain investments, may make it more costly for it to operate, or adversely impact its performance. Additionally, it is possible that recently adopted regulations could be further revised or rescinded, which creates material uncertainty on their impact to the Fund.

Advancements in technology, including advanced development and increased regulation of artificial intelligence, may adversely impact market movements and liquidity. As artificial intelligence is used

more widely, the profitability and growth of certain issuers and industries may be negatively impacted in ways that cannot be foreseen and could adversely impact performance.

Tensions, war, or open conflict between nations, such as between Russia and Ukraine, in the Middle East, or in eastern Asia could affect the economies of many nations, including the United States. The duration of ongoing hostilities and any sanctions and related events cannot be predicted. Those events present material uncertainty and risk with respect to markets globally and the performance of the Fund and its investments or operations could be negatively impacted.

Certain illnesses spread rapidly and have the potential to significantly and adversely affect the global economy. The impact of epidemics and/or pandemics that may arise in the future could negatively affect the economies of many nations, individual companies and the global securities and commodities markets, including their liquidity, in ways that cannot necessarily be foreseen at the present time and could last for an extended period of time.

High public debt in the U.S. and other countries creates ongoing systemic and market risks and policymaking uncertainty. There is no assurance that the U.S. Congress will act to raise the nation's debt ceiling; a failure to do so could cause market turmoil and substantial investment risks that cannot now be fully predicted. Unexpected political, regulatory and diplomatic events within the U.S. and abroad may affect investor and consumer confidence and may adversely impact financial markets and the broader economy.

China's economy, which had been sustained through debt-financed spending on housing and infrastructure, appears to be experiencing a significant slowdown and growing at a lower rate than prior years. While the Chinese government appears to be taking measures to address these issues, due to the size of China's economy, the resolution of these issues could impact a number of other countries.

Global climate change can have potential effects on property and security values. Certain issuers, industries and regions may be adversely affected by the impact of climate change in ways that cannot be foreseen. The impact of legislation, regulation and international accords related to climate change, including any direct or indirect consequences that may not be foreseen, may negatively impact certain issuers, industries and regions.

A rise in sea levels, a change in weather patterns, including an increase in powerful storms and large wildfires, and/or a climate-driven increase in flooding could cause properties to lose value or become unmarketable altogether. Unlike previous declines in the real estate market, properties in affected zones may not ever recover their value. Regulatory changes and divestment movements tied to concerns about climate change could adversely affect the value of certain land and the viability of industries whose activities or products are seen as accelerating climate change.

Losses related to climate change could adversely affect corporate issuers and mortgage lenders, the value of mortgage-backed securities, the bonds of municipalities that depend on tax or other revenues and tourist dollars generated by affected properties, and insurers of the property and/or of corporate, municipal or mortgage-backed securities. Since property and security values are driven largely by buyers' perceptions, it is difficult to know the time period over which these market effects might unfold.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The Fund is classified as a "diversified" fund under the 1940 Act. Currently under the 1940 Act, a diversified fund may not, with respect to 75% of its total assets, invest in a security if, as a result of such investment, more than 5% of the fund's total assets would be invested in the securities of any one issuer or the fund would hold more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer. These percentage limitations do not apply to securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies and instrumentalities or to securities issued by other investment companies. With respect to the remaining 25% of its total assets, a diversified fund may invest more than 5% of its total assets in the securities of one issuer. Repurchase agreements will not be considered to be subject to the above-stated 5% limitation if the collateral underlying the repurchase agreements consists exclusively of obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities. In addition, mortgage- and asset-backed securities will not be considered to have been issued by the same issuer by reason of the securities having the same sponsor, and mortgage- and asset-backed securities issued by a finance or other special purpose subsidiary that are not guaranteed by the parent company will be considered to be issued by a separate issuer from the parent company. The 1940 Act provides that a fund may not change its classification from diversified to non-diversified unless authorized by the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the fund.

The Fund has adopted the following investment restrictions as fundamental policies that may not be changed without the vote of the lesser of: (1) 67% or more of the shares of the Fund represented at a meeting at which more than 50% of the outstanding Fund shares are represented; or (2) a majority of the outstanding shares of the Fund. Pursuant to such policies, the Fund may not:

(1) issue senior securities except as permitted by the 1940 Act or other governing statute, by the Rules thereunder, or by the SEC or other regulatory agency with authority over the Fund.

(2) borrow money, except as permitted under the 1940 Act, and the rules thereunder, as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction from time to time, and any applicable exemptive relief.

(3) engage in the business of underwriting securities issued by others, except to the extent that the sale of portfolio securities by the Fund may be deemed to be an underwriting or as otherwise permitted by the 1940 Act, and the rules thereunder, as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction from time to time, and any applicable exemptive relief.

(4) concentrate its investments in a particular industry or group of industries, as the term "concentration" is used in the 1940 Act, and the rules thereunder, as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction from time to time, and any applicable exemptive relief.

(5) purchase or sell real estate, except that the Fund may purchase and sell securities or other instruments that are secured by, or linked to, real estate or interests therein, securities of real estate investment trusts, mortgage-related securities and securities of issuers engaged in the real estate business, and the Fund may purchase and sell real estate acquired as a result of the ownership of securities or other instruments.

(6) purchase or sell physical commodities to the extent prohibited by the 1940 Act and other applicable laws, and the rules thereunder, as interpreted or modified by regulatory authorities having jurisdiction from time to time, and any applicable exemptive relief.

(7) make loans to other persons to the extent prohibited by the 1940 Act, and the rules thereunder, as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction from time to time, and any applicable exemptive relief.

Notations Regarding the Fund's Fundamental Restrictions

The Fund's fundamental restrictions are written and will be interpreted broadly. From time to time, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and members of its staff, and others, issue formal or informal views on various provisions of the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder, including through noaction letters and exemptive orders. For flexibility, the Fund's fundamental restrictions will be interpreted with regard to these interpretations or modifications, as they are given from time to time. Therefore, it is possible that the interpretation of the Fund's fundamental restrictions could change in the future.

The following notations are not considered to be part of the Fund's fundamental restrictions and are subject to change without shareholder approval.

Senior Securities and Borrowing (notations regarding the fundamental restrictions set forth in (1) and (2) above)

"Senior securities" generally are obligations that have a priority over a fund's shares with respect to the distribution of portfolio assets or the payment of dividends. Borrowings are viewed as involving the creation of a senior security. Under the 1940 Act, an open-end fund currently may not issue senior securities, except that a fund is permitted to borrow money in an amount not in excess of $33^{1}/_{3}$ % of the fund's total assets (including the amount of the senior securities issued but reduced by any liabilities not constituting senior securities) at the time of the issuance or borrowing, and except that a fund may borrow up to an additional 5% of its total assets (not including the amount borrowed) for temporary purposes, such as clearance of portfolio transactions and share redemptions. Any Fund borrowings that come to exceed these amounts will be reduced in accordance with applicable law.

Rule 18f-4 under the 1940 Act ("Rule 18f-4") governs the use of derivatives by registered investment companies. Rule 18f-4 imposes limits on the amount of derivatives a fund can enter into and replaces the asset segregation framework previously used by funds to comply with the limitations on the issuance of senior securities imposed by Section 18 of the 1940 Act. Rule 18f-4 permits a fund, provided that the conditions imposed by the rule are met, to engage in derivatives transactions and certain other transactions that might otherwise be considered to create senior securities.

Underwriting (notations regarding the fundamental restriction set forth in (3) above)

A fund engaging in transactions involving the acquisition or disposition of portfolio securities may be considered to be an "underwriter" under certain federal securities laws. Although it is not believed that the application of the federal securities laws so described would cause the Fund to be engaged in the business of underwriting, the fundamental restriction will be interpreted not to prevent the Fund from engaging in transactions involving the acquisition or disposition of portfolio securities, regardless of whether the Fund may be considered to be within the technical definition of an underwriter under the federal securities laws or is otherwise engaged in the underwriting business to the extent permitted under applicable law.

Concentration (notations with respect to the fundamental restriction set forth in (4) above)

While the 1940 Act does not define what constitutes "concentration" in an industry, the SEC staff has taken the position that investment of 25% or more of a fund's total assets in one or more issuers conducting their principal business activities in the same industry or group of industries constitutes concentration. The fundamental restriction does not apply to securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies or instrumentalities, or obligations the interest on which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes issued or guaranteed by a U.S. territory or possession or a state or local government, or a political subdivision of any of the foregoing. Private activity municipal securities are not included within the exclusion for political subdivisions. In addition, investments in other investment companies are not considered an investment in any particular industry for purposes of the fundamental restriction. Industries generally are determined by reference to the classifications of industries set forth in the Fund's shareholder report. With respect to the Fund's investments in options, futures, swaps and other derivative transactions, industries may be determined by reference to the industry of the reference asset. The Fund may invest in securities of other investment companies or investment vehicles that may concentrate their assets in one or more industries. The Fund may consider the concentration of such investment companies and investment vehicles in determining compliance with the fundamental restriction.

Commodities (notations with respect to the fundamental restriction set forth in (6) above)

The 1940 Act generally does not prohibit a fund from investing in commodities or commodity-related instruments. A fund is, however, limited in the amount of illiquid assets it may purchase, and certain commodities, especially physical commodities, may be considered to be illiquid. The Fund may purchase or sell currencies and securities or other instruments backed by physical commodities and may purchase, sell or enter into options, futures, forward and spot currency contracts, swap transactions and other financial contracts or derivative instruments, including commodity-linked derivative instruments. The Fund may, consistent with the fundamental restriction, transact in securities of exchange-traded funds ("ETFs") or similar instruments that provide exposure to physical commodities. The Fund will not qualify as a "regulated investment company" under Section 851(a) of the Code (a "RIC") in any taxable year, however, for which more than 10% of its gross income consists of certain "non-qualifying" income, which includes gains from selling physical commodities (or options or futures contracts thereon unless the gain is realized from certain hedging transactions). To remain within that limitation, the Fund may need to limit its purchases of commodity-related investments that generate non-qualifying income, hold such an investment to avoid realizing non-qualifying income, sell such an investment at a loss, or take other actions, such as sell other investments, when for investment reasons it would not otherwise do so. The Fund would not intend to sell commodityrelated investments when doing so would cause it to fail to qualify as a RIC.

Loans (notations with respect to the fundamental restriction set forth in (7) above)

The fundamental restriction allows the Fund to engage in all forms of lending (including loans of cash and portfolio securities) — and thus become a creditor — to the full extent permitted under the 1940 Act and related interpretations, as in effect from time to time. For purposes of the fundamental restriction, the acquisition of bonds, debentures, other debt securities or instruments, or participations or other interests therein and investments in government obligations, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances or similar instruments and repurchase agreements will not be considered the making of a loan.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

Board Leadership Structure. The Board of Trustees has general oversight responsibility with respect to the operation of the Fund. The Board of Trustees has engaged Evercore Wealth Management, LLC to manage the Fund and is responsible for overseeing the Adviser and other service providers to the Fund in accordance with applicable laws. The Board of Trustees has established an audit committee to assist the Board of Trustees in performing its oversight responsibilities.

Frederick Taylor is Chairman of the Board of Trustees. Mr. Taylor is an "interested person" (as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act) of the Fund because he is a Senior Advisor of the Adviser. The Fund does not have a lead independent trustee. The Board of Trustees reviews its structure periodically and believes that its leadership structure is appropriate given the asset size of the Fund, the number of Trustees overseeing the Fund and the Board of Trustees' oversight responsibilities, as well as the Fund's business activities and management structure.

Board Oversight of Risk. Through its direct oversight of Fund officers, and indirectly through the audit committee and service providers, the Board of Trustees performs a risk oversight function for the Fund. To effectively perform its risk oversight function, the Board of Trustees, among other things, performs the following activities: receives and reviews reports related to the performance and operations of the Fund; reviews and approves, as applicable, the compliance policies and procedures of the Fund; approves the Fund's principal investment policies; adopts policies and procedures designed to deter market timing; meets with representatives of various service providers, including the Adviser and the independent registered public accounting firm of the Fund, to review and discuss the activities of the Fund who oversees the implementation and testing of the Fund's compliance program and reports to the Board of Trustees regarding compliance matters for the Fund and its service providers.

The Fund has an audit committee consisting solely of the two independent trustees. The audit committee plays a significant role in the risk oversight of the Fund as it meets annually with the auditors of the Fund and periodically with the Fund's chief compliance officer.

Management Information. As a Delaware statutory trust, the business and affairs of the Fund are managed by its officers under the direction of its Board of Trustees. The name, age, address, principal occupations during the past five years, and other information with respect to each of the trustees and officers of the Fund are as follows:

Name, Address and Age	Position(s) Held with the Fund	Term of Office and Length of Time Served*	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee During Past Five Years
INDEPENDENT TRUSTEES					

Name, Address and Age	Position(s) Held with the Fund	Term of Office and Length of Time Served*	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee During Past Five Years
Laird I. Grant 55 East 52nd Street, 23rd Floor New York, NY 10055 (born 1945)	Trustee	Since 2012	Retired; Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager, U.S. Trust Company of Florida, 2001-2008.	1	David Lawrence Center 2019- Present; Chair of the Investment Committee, David Lawrence Center 2021- Present; Toscana at Bay Colony 2019-2021.

Name, Address and Age	Position(s) Held with the Fund	Term of Office and Length of Time Served*	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee	Other Directorships Held by Trustee During Past Five Years
Frederick Taylor** 55 East 52 nd Street, 23 rd Floor New York, NY 10055 (born 1941)	Chairman, Trustee, and President	Since 2013	Senior Advisor, Evercore Wealth Management, LLC 2008-Present.	1	John's Island Golf Club, 2012- Present; Vero Beach Museum and Vero Beach Museum Endowment Trust Board, 2012-2020; Trustee Emeritus, Wesleyan University, 2006-Present.
OFFICERS					
Ruth P. Calaman 55 East 52 nd Street, 23 rd Floor New York, NY 10055 (born 1966)	Executive Vice President, Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer	Since 2012	General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer, Evercore Wealth Management LLC and Evercore Trust Company, N.A. since 2011. Partner, Evercore Wealth Management, LLC since 2021.	N/A	None
Dianna Caban 55 East 52 nd Street, 23 rd Floor New York, NY 10055 (born 1967)	Executive Vice President and Treasurer	Since 2019	Managing Director, Evercore Wealth Management, LLC since 2008.	N/A	None

* Each Trustee serves for an indefinite term until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified, unless the Trustee resigns, dies or is removed in accordance with the provisions of the Trust's By-Laws.

** Denotes a Trustee who is an "interested person" (as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act) of the Trust because of his association with the Adviser. Frederick Taylor is an "interested person" (as so defined) of the Trust because he is a Senior Advisor of the Adviser.

Qualification of Trustees. Frederick Taylor became a Trustee in 2013. Mr. Taylor has extensive experience in the investment management industry as a vice chairman and chief investment officer of a trust company. Mr. Taylor has also served as a board member for various companies and not for profit organizations.

Laird I. Grant became a Trustee in 2012. Ms. Grant has extensive experience in the investment management industry as a managing director, president, chief executive officer, executive vice

president, chief investment officer and portfolio manager of a trust company. Ms. Grant has also served as a board member for various companies and not for profit organizations.

Katharine L. Plourde became a Trustee in 2014. Ms. Plourde has extensive experience in the financial services and investment management industries as a former securities analyst at a major investment bank, where she was a managing director and principal focusing on research coverage of the specialty chemical, specialty material, industrial gas and related industries. Ms. Plourde also serves as a member of the board of a publicly traded company.

Board Interest in the Fund. As of December 31, 2024, the Trustees owned the following amounts in the Fund:

Name of Trustee	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Fund	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity Securities in all Registered Investment Companies Overseen by Director in Family of Investment Companies*
Independent Trustees:		
Laird I. Grant	None	None
Katharine L. Plourde	None	None
Interested Trustee:		
Frederick Taylor	None	None

*The "Family of Investment Companies" includes only the Fund.

Compensation. For their service, the Trustees receive an annual fee of \$15,000 each. In addition, the Trustees are reimbursed for expenses incurred in connection with their attendance at Board meetings held during the year. The table below details the amount of compensation the Trustees received from the Fund for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. The Fund makes no payments of salary to any Officer in such capacity.

Name of Person, Position	Aggregate Compensation from Fund	Pension or Retirement Benefits Accrued As Part of Fund Expenses	Annual Benefits Upon Retirement	Compensation From Fund and Fund Complex* Paid to Directors
Independent Trustees:				
Laird I. Grant	\$15,000	0	0	\$15,000
Katharine L. Plourde	\$15,000	0	0	\$15,000
Interested Trustee:				
Frederick Taylor	\$15,000	0	0	\$15,000

* The "Fund Complex" includes only the Fund.

Management Ownership. As of April 2, 2025, all Officers and Trustees of the Fund as a group owned (according to information supplied by them) of record or beneficially less than 1% of the Fund's outstanding shares. Furthermore, neither the Independent Trustees nor members of their immediate family own securities beneficially or of record in the Adviser, the principal underwriter or an affiliate of the Adviser or principal underwriter or any person controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Adviser or principal underwriter. Evercore Wealth Management, LLC serves as the

investment adviser for certain investment accounts of Ms. Grant or accounts for which she is the named trustee. During the calendar year 2024, the advisory fees paid to the Adviser with respect to these accounts were approximately \$181,000. The accounts pay the same fees applicable to other similarly situated types of accounts at the Adviser and are not accorded any special treatment regarding portfolio management decisions or securities allocations.

Board Committees. The Trust has one standing committee, the Audit Committee, which is comprised exclusively of all of the Independent Trustees. The Audit Committee typically meets twice per year with respect to the Fund. The functions of the Audit Committee are to review the scope and results of the audit of the Fund's financial statements and any matters bearing on the audit or the Fund's financial statements and any matters bearing and financial reporting. The Audit Committee for the Fund met twice with respect to the Fund during the fiscal year of the Fund ended December 31, 2024.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Trust, the Adviser and the Distributor have each adopted a Code of Ethics under, or which complies in substance with, Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act. These Codes of Ethics permit, subject to certain conditions, personnel of the Adviser and Distributor to invest in securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF FUND SECURITIES

Control persons are persons deemed to control the Fund because they own beneficially over 25% of the outstanding equity securities or otherwise acknowledges the existence of control. Shareholders owning more than 25% of the outstanding shares of the Fund may be able to determine the outcome of most issues that are submitted to shareholders for a vote. For shares held in accounts at SEI Private Trust Company, the Adviser generally retains voting discretion for the beneficial owners of the shares. Principal holders are persons that own beneficially 5% or more of the Fund's outstanding equity securities. As of April 4, 2025, the Fund had no control persons, and the following shareholders owned more than 5% of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund:

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	% Ownership	Type of Ownership
SEI Private Trust Company C/O Evercore Bank Attn: Mutual Fund Administrator One Freedom Valley Drive Oaks, PA 19456-9989	SEI Investments Management Corp	PA	79.58%	Record
Charles Schwab & Co. Inc. Special Custody A/C FBO Customers Attn: Mutual Funds 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1901	N/A	N/A	10.48%	Record
NFS LLC FEBO FIICO As Agent For Qualified Employee Benefit Plans 401K FINOPS-IC Funds 100 Magellan Way #KW1C Covington, KY 41015-1987	N/A	N/A	6.43%	Record

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS

Decisions to buy and sell securities for the Fund are made by the Adviser. Officers of the Fund are generally responsible for implementing or supervising these decisions, including allocation of portfolio brokerage and principal business as well as the negotiation of commissions and/or the price of the securities. A change in the securities held by the Fund is known as "portfolio turnover." Portfolio turnover may vary significantly from year to year due to a variety of factors within and outside the control of the Fund and the Adviser, including a fluctuating volume of shareholder purchase and redemption orders, market conditions, investment strategy changes, or changes in the Adviser's investment outlook. A high turnover rate (100% or more) increases transaction costs (e.g., brokerage commissions) which must be borne by the Fund and its shareholders.

Portfolio changes will be made promptly in the event that the Adviser shall consider such action appropriate, without regard to the length of time any security involved was held or the impact of such changes on turnover consistent with the Fund's objectives.

The portfolio turnover rate is calculated by dividing the lesser of the annual sales or purchases of portfolio securities by the monthly average value of the portfolio securities held by the Fund during the year (excluding all securities whose maturities or expiration dates at the time of acquisition were one year or less). A high portfolio turnover may result in higher brokerage costs and additional net realized capital gains, which will be taxable to the Fund's shareholders when distributed to them.

During the past two fiscal years, the Fund's portfolio turnover rate was as follows:

For Fiscal Years Ended December 31,		
<u>2024</u>	<u>2023</u>	
8.55%	9.66%	

Fund Portfolio Turnover Rate For Fiscal Years Ended December 31

When considering prospective investments, the Fund anticipates retaining securities purchased over a period of time. However, a review of the Fund's portfolio relative to alternate investments may lead to disposition of a security in a short period of time.

In instances where securities are purchased on a commission basis, the Fund will seek competitive and reasonable commission rates based on circumstances of the trade involved and to the extent that they do not detract from the quality of the execution. The Fund, in purchasing and selling portfolio securities, will seek the best available combination of execution and overall price (which shall include the cost of the transaction) consistent with the circumstances which exist at the time. The Fund does not intend to solicit competitive bids on each transaction.

The Fund believes it is in its best interest and that of its shareholders to have a stable and continuous relationship with a diverse group of financially strong and technically qualified broker-dealers who will provide quality executions at competitive rates. Broker-dealers meeting these qualifications also will be selected for any research or other services provided to the Fund. Substantially all of the portfolio transactions are through brokerage firms that are members of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), which is typically the most active market in the size of the Fund's transactions and for the types of securities predominant in the Fund's portfolio. When buying securities in the over-the-counter

market, the Fund will select a broker who maintains a primary market for the security unless it appears that a better combination of price and execution may be obtained elsewhere. The Fund normally will not pay a higher commission rate to broker-dealers providing benefits or services to it than it would pay to broker-dealers who do not provide it such benefits or services. However, the Fund reserves the right to do so within the principles set out in Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, when it appears that this would be in the best interests of the shareholders. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Fund acquired securities of its "regular brokers or dealers" (as defined under the 1940 Act), Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc., with an aggregate value of \$16,242,395.

No commitment is made to any broker or dealer with regard to placing of orders for the purchase or sale of Fund portfolio securities, and no specific formula is used in placing such business. Brokerage allocation is reviewed regularly by both the Board of Trustees and the Adviser.

The Fund has developed policies to ensure that its selection of selling brokers for portfolio transactions is not influenced by considerations about the sale of Fund shares.

Research services furnished by broker-dealers may be useful to the Adviser in serving other clients, as well as the Fund. Conversely, the Fund may benefit from research services obtained by the Adviser from the placement of portfolio brokerage of other clients.

When it appears to be in the best interests of its shareholders, the Fund may join with other clients of the Adviser in acquiring or disposing of a portfolio holding. Securities acquired or proceeds obtained will be equitably distributed between the Fund and other clients participating in the transaction. In some instances, this investment procedure may affect the price paid or received by the Fund or the size of the position obtained by the Fund.

During the past three fiscal years, the Fund paid the following brokerage commissions, to brokerage firms in connection with its purchases and sales of portfolio securities.

For Fiscal Tears Ended December 51,				
<u>2024</u>	2023	2022		
\$29,308	\$25,648	\$25,105		

Fund Brokerage Commissions For Fiscal Years Ended December 31,

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022 through 2024, no broker employed by the Fund (i) was an "affiliated person" (as defined in Section 2(a)(3) of the 1940 Act) of the Fund; (ii) was an affiliated person of such an affiliated person; or (iii) had an affiliated person who was also an affiliated person of the Fund, the Adviser or the principal underwriter.

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION

The Fund maintains written policies and a procedure regarding the disclosure of its portfolio holdings to ensure that disclosure of information about portfolio securities is in the best interest of the Fund's shareholders. It is the policy of the Fund to safeguard against misuse of the Fund's current portfolio holdings information and prevent the selective disclosure of non-public information concerning the Fund. The officers of the Fund, on a regular basis, receive reports as to purchases and redemptions of

Fund shares and review these reports to determine if there is any unusual trading in Fund shares. The officers of the Fund will report to the Board of Trustees any such unusual trading in Fund shares.

The Fund has entered into arrangements with certain third party service providers for services that require these groups to have access to the Fund's portfolio on a daily basis. As a result, such third party service providers may receive portfolio holdings information prior to and more frequently than the public disclosure of such information. For example, the Fund may disclose portfolio holdings information to the fund accountant who is responsible for maintaining the accounting records of the Fund, which includes maintaining a current portfolio of the Fund. The Fund also undergoes an annual audit, which requires the Fund's independent auditor to review the Fund's portfolio. In addition to the Fund's fund accountant, the Fund's custodian also maintains an up-to-date list of the Fund's holdings. Further, the Fund may disclose its portfolio holdings to printers for the purpose of preparing Fund regulatory filings, to other service providers such as proxy voting services to the Fund and to ranking organizations for use in developing a ranking for the Fund. Each of these parties is contractually and/or ethically prohibited from sharing the Fund's portfolio or trading on portfolio holdings information unless specifically authorized by the Fund's Chief Compliance Officer or another designated officer of the Fund.

The Fund makes its full portfolio holdings publicly available on its website on a monthly basis, but not earlier than five days after each month end. The Fund also, at the end of each calendar quarter, lists the 10 largest holdings by percentage of assets, on its web site, but not earlier than five days after the end of the quarter. Disclosure of the Fund's holdings as of the end of its fiscal year and its second fiscal quarter is filed with the SEC on Form N-CSR within 60 days of the period covered. In addition, monthly portfolio disclosures will be filed with the SEC on Form N-PORT no later than 60 days after the end of each fiscal quarter. The Fund's complete portfolio holdings as of its first and third fiscal quarter ends are made publicly available on Form N-PORT 60 days after the end of the respective quarter. The Annual and Semi-Annual Reports and Form N-CSR will be available by contacting Evercore Equity Fund c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services, P.O. Box 219252, Kansas City, MO 64121-9252 or calling 1-800-443-4693 and on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

Additionally, the Fund may provide its entire portfolio to the following ranking organizations: Morningstar, Inc., Lipper, Inc., Standard & Poor's Financial Services, LLC, Bloomberg L.P., Thomson Financial Research, Vickers Stock Research Corporation Data and Capital Bridge, Inc. The Fund's management has determined that these organizations provide investors with a valuable service and therefore are willing to provide them with portfolio information. The Fund may not pay these organizations or receive any compensation from them for providing this information. The Fund may provide portfolio information to these organizations on either a monthly or quarterly basis, but not earlier than five days after the end of the quarter. Because the information that is provided is at least five days old, the Fund has not required that these ranking organizations be subject to confidentiality agreements or trading prohibitions.

TAX ASPECTS

The following information supplements the tax information set forth in the Prospectus.

The Fund has elected to be a "regulated investment company" under Subchapter M of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Code (a "RIC"), has qualified for treatment as such for its most recent taxable year,

and intends to continue to so qualify for its current taxable year. As a RIC, the Fund generally pays no federal income tax on the net income and realized gains it distributes to you.

If the Fund failed to qualify for treatment as a RIC for any taxable year -- and was unable to, or determined not to, avail itself of Code provisions that enable a RIC to cure a failure to satisfy certain source of income and asset diversification requirements to be a RIC as long as the failure "is due to reasonable cause and not due to willful neglect" and the RIC pays a deductible tax calculated in accordance with those provisions and meets certain other requirements -- then for federal income tax purposes it would be taxed as an ordinary corporation on the full amount of its taxable income for that year without being able to deduct the distributions it makes to its shareholders. In addition, for those purposes the shareholders would treat all those distributions, including distributions of net capital gain (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), as dividends to the extent of the Fund's earnings and profits. For individual and certain other non-corporate shareholders (each, an "individual shareholder"), those dividends would be taxable as "gualified dividend income" (as defined in the Prospectus) ("QDI") and thus subject to federal income tax at the rates for net capital gain -- a maximum of 15% for a single shareholder with taxable income not exceeding \$533,400 (\$600,050 for married shareholders filing jointly) and 20% for individual shareholders with taxable income exceeding those respective amounts (which apply for 2025 and will be adjusted for inflation annually thereafter). In the case of corporate shareholders that meet certain holding period and other requirements regarding their Fund shares, all or part of those dividends would be eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Furthermore, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest, and make substantial distributions before regualifying for RIC treatment. The Board of Trustees reserves the right not to maintain the Fund's gualification for treatment as a RIC if it determines such course of action to be beneficial to shareholders. In such case, the consequences described above would apply.

To avoid a 4% non-deductible federal excise tax ("Excise Tax"), the Fund must distribute to its shareholders by December 31 of each year at least the sum of the following amounts: 98% of its ordinary income earned during the calendar year; 98.2% of its capital gain net income earned during the twelve-month period ending October 31 of that year; plus 100% of any undistributed amounts from the prior year. The Fund intends to declare and pay these amounts in December (or in January, in the case of certain dividends that are treated as paid by the Fund and received by its shareholders on December 31) to avoid the Excise Tax but can give no assurances that its distributions will be sufficient to eliminate all taxes.

The Fund earns income generally in the form of dividends and interest on its investments. This income, less expenses incurred in the operation of the Fund, constitutes the Fund's net investment income from which dividends may be paid to you. Any distributions by the Fund from such income will be taxable to you as ordinary income, whether you take them in cash or in additional shares, except the part thereof that is QDI if you are an individual shareholder.

The Fund treats most foreign exchange gains and losses it realizes on the sale of debt securities as ordinary income and loss, respectively. Those gains (net of those losses) when distributed will be taxable to you as ordinary dividends, and any losses will reduce the Fund's ordinary income otherwise available for distribution to you. This treatment could increase or reduce the Fund's ordinary income distributions to you and may cause some or all of the Fund's previously distributed income to be classified as a "return of capital."

Any loss incurred on the redemption of Fund shares held for six months or less will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any net capital gain distributed to you by the Fund on those shares. All or a portion of any loss that you realize upon the redemption of your Fund shares will be disallowed to the extent that you buy other shares in the Fund (through reinvestment of distributions or otherwise) within 30 days before or after the redemption. Any loss disallowed under these rules will be added to your tax basis in the new shares you buy.

The Fund may invest in the stock of "passive foreign investment companies" ("PFICs"). A PFIC is any foreign corporation (with certain exceptions) that, in general, meets either of the following tests for a taxable year: (1) at least 75% of its gross income is passive; or (2) an average of at least 50% of its assets produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. Under certain circumstances, the Fund will be subject to federal income tax on a portion of any "excess distribution" it receives on the stock of a PFIC and of any gain on its disposition of that stock (collectively, "PFIC income"), plus interest thereon, even if the Fund distributes the PFIC income as a dividend to its shareholders. The balance of the PFIC income will be included in the Fund's investment company taxable income and, accordingly, will not be taxable to it to the extent it distributes that income to its shareholders. Fund distributions thereof will not be eligible for the 15%/20% maximum federal income tax rates on individual shareholders' QDI.

If the Fund invests in a PFIC and elects to treat the PFIC as a "qualified electing fund" ("QEF"), then in lieu of the foregoing tax and interest obligation, the Fund would be required to include in income each taxable year its *pro rata* share of the QEF's annual ordinary earnings and net capital gain ----which the Fund likely would have to distribute to satisfy the distribution requirement necessary to qualify for RIC treatment ("Distribution Requirement") and avoid imposition of the Excise Tax -- even if the QEF did not distribute those earnings and gain to the Fund. In most instances it will be very difficult, if not impossible, to make this election because of certain requirements thereof.

The Fund may elect to "mark to market" any stock in certain PFICs it owns at the end of its taxable year, in which event it likely would be required to distribute to its shareholders any resulting income (described in the next sentence) to comply with the Distribution Requirement. "Marking-to-market," in this context, means including in gross income each taxable year (and treating as ordinary income) the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the stock over the Fund's adjusted basis therein (including mark-to-market gain for each prior taxable year for which an election was in effect) as of the end of that year. Pursuant to the election, the Fund also would be allowed to deduct (as an ordinary, not a capital, loss) the excess, if any, of its adjusted basis in PFIC stock over the fair market value thereof as of the taxable year-end, but only to the extent of any net mark-to-market gains with respect to that stock the Fund included in income for prior taxable years under the election. The Fund's adjusted basis in each PFIC's stock subject to the election would be adjusted to reflect the amounts of income included and deductions taken thereunder.

You should be aware that whether a foreign corporation is a PFIC is a fact-intensive determination that is based on various facts and circumstances and thus is subject to change, and the principles and methodology used therein are subject to interpretation. As a result, the Fund may not be able, at the time it acquires a foreign corporation's shares, to ascertain whether the corporation is a PFIC, and a foreign corporation may become a PFIC after the Fund acquires shares therein. While the Fund generally will seek to avoid investing in PFIC shares to avoid the tax consequences detailed above, there are no guarantees that it will be able to do so and it reserves the right to make such investments as a matter of its investment policy.

The Fund may be subject to foreign withholding taxes on income from, and gains realized on the disposition of, certain of its foreign securities, which would reduce the yield and/or total return on its investments. Tax conventions between certain countries and the United States may reduce or eliminate these taxes, however, and many foreign countries do not impose taxes on capital gains in respect of investments by foreign investors.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA"). Under FATCA, "foreign financial institutions" ("FFIs") and "non-financial foreign entities" ("NFFEs") that are Fund shareholders may be subject to a generally nonrefundable 30% withholding tax on income dividends the Fund pays. As discussed more fully below, the FATCA withholding tax generally can be avoided (a) by an FFI, if it reports certain information regarding direct and indirect ownership of financial accounts U.S. persons hold with the FFI, and (b) by an NFFE that certifies its status as such and, in certain circumstances, information regarding substantial U.S. owners.

An FFI can avoid FATCA withholding by becoming a "participating FFI," which requires the FFI to enter into a tax compliance agreement with the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") under the Code. Under such an agreement, a participating FFI agrees to (1) verify and document whether it has U.S. accountholders, (2) report certain information regarding their accounts to the IRS, and (3) meet certain other specified requirements.

The U.S. Treasury has negotiated intergovernmental agreements ("IGAs") with certain countries and is in various stages of negotiations with other foreign countries with respect to one or more alternative approaches to implement FATCA. An entity in one of those countries may be required to comply with the terms of the applicable IGA instead of U.S. Treasury regulations. An FFI resident in a country that has entered into a Model I IGA with the United States must report to the government of that country (pursuant to the terms of the applicable IGA and applicable law), which will, in turn, report to the IRS. An FFI resident in a Model II IGA country generally must comply with U.S. regulatory requirements, with certain exceptions, including the treatment of recalcitrant accountholders. An FFI resident in one of those countries that complies with whichever of the foregoing applies will be exempt from FATCA withholding.

An NFFE that is the beneficial owner of a payment from the Fund can avoid FATCA withholding generally by certifying its status as such and, in certain circumstances, either that (1) it does not have any substantial U.S. owners or (2) it does have one or more such owners and reports the name, address, and taxpayer identification number of each such owner. The NFFE will report to the Fund or other applicable withholding agent, which may, in turn, report information to the IRS.

Such foreign shareholders also may fall into certain exempt, excepted, or deemed compliant categories established by U.S. Treasury regulations, IGAs, and other guidance regarding FATCA. An FFI or NFFE that invests in the Fund will need to provide the Fund with documentation properly certifying the entity's status under FATCA in order to avoid FATCA withholding. The requirements imposed by FATCA are different from, and in addition to, the tax certification rules to avoid backup withholding described in the Prospectus. Foreign investors are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of these requirements to their own situation and the impact thereof on their investment in the Fund.

Effective for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2026, the Code generally allows Individuals and certain non-corporate entities a deduction for 20% of (1) "qualified REIT dividends" and (2) "QPTP income." "Qualified REIT dividends" generally includes any dividend

received from a REIT which is not QDI and is not a "capital gain dividend" (with certain exceptions, any dividend timely designated by the REIT as a capital gain dividend). "OPTP income" is the sum of (1) the net amount of a partner's allocable share of income, gain, deduction, and loss from a "publicly traded partnership" (generally, a partnership the interests in which are traded on an established securities market or are readily tradable on a secondary market (or the substantial equivalent thereof)) that is not taxed as a corporation, plus (2) any gain or loss attributable to assets of the publicly traded partnership giving rise to ordinary income considered attributable to a trade or business conducted by the partnership. Generally, a publicly traded partnership is not taxed as a corporation (and therefore may be a qualified publicly traded partnership) if at least 90% of its gross income consists of "qualifying income." Qualifying income includes interest, dividends, real property rents, gain from the disposition of real property, and certain other sources of income. Regulations finalized in 2020 allow a fund to pass the character of its gualified REIT dividends through to its shareholders provided certain holding period requirements are met. The Treasury Department has also announced that it is considering adopting regulations that would provide a similar pass-through of QPTP income, but that pass-through is not currently available. As a result, an investor who invests directly in QPTPs will be able to receive the benefit of the 20% deduction, which a shareholder in a fund that invests in QPTPs currently will not.

PRINCIPAL UNDERWRITER

Quasar Distributors, LLC, the Fund's principal underwriter or distributor (the "Distributor"), offers shares of the Fund on a continuous basis. Quasar is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Foreside Distributors, LLC. During the last three fiscal years, the Distributor did not receive any net underwriting discounts or commissions, compensation on redemptions and repurchases, brokerage commissions or other compensation from the Fund.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Fund's NAV per share is determined as of the close of business on the NYSE (currently, 4:00 p.m. Eastern time) on each day the NYSE is open for trading. The Fund does not expect to determine the NAV of its shares on any day when the NYSE is not open for trading even if there is sufficient trading in its portfolio securities on such days to materially affect the NAV per share. NAV will not be determined on the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth National Independence Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

The Fund's NAV per share is computed by dividing the value of the securities held by the Fund, plus any cash or other assets (including interest and dividends accrued but not yet received), minus all liabilities (including accrued expenses), by the total number of shares outstanding at such time. Expenses, including the fees payable to the Adviser, are accrued daily as is practicable. Dividends receivable are treated as assets from the date on which securities go ex-dividend and interest on bonds or other interest-bearing securities is accrued daily. An example of how the Fund calculated its NAV per share as of December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Net Assets	_	NAV Der Chara
Shares Outstanding	=	NAV Per Share
\$480,313,651.02		\$37.09
\$12,949,611.866	=	\$37.09

Generally, the Fund's investments are valued at market value or, in the absence of a market value, at fair value. The Board of Trustees has designated the Adviser as the Fund's valuation designee to perform fair value functions in accordance with valuation policies and procedures adopted by the Adviser, subject to the Board of Trustee's oversight. Using fair value to price a security may result in a value different from the security's most recent closing price and from the prices used by other mutual funds to calculate their share prices. In determining fair value, the valuation designee considers, among other things: 1) the last sales price on the securities exchange, if any, on which a security is primarily traded; 2) the mean between the last bid and asked prices; 3) price quotations from an approved pricing service, and 4) other factors as necessary to determine a fair value under certain circumstances.

PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION SERVICES

The Fund reserves the right in certain circumstances to:

- Waive or increase the minimum investment requirements with respect to any person or class of persons, which include shareholders of the Fund's special investment programs.
- Begin charging a fee for certain redemption services and to change the service upon 60 days written notice to you.
- Begin charging a fee for the systematic withdrawal plan upon 30 days written notice to you.
- Waive signature guarantee requirements in certain instances where it appears reasonable to do so and will not unduly affect the interests of other shareholders.

SHARE PURCHASES

The Fund will not be responsible for the consequences of delays, including delays in the banking or Federal Reserve wire systems. We cannot process transaction requests that are not complete and in good order as defined in the Prospectus. If you use the services of any other broker to purchase or redeem shares of the Fund, that broker may charge you a fee. Each order accepted will be fully invested in whole and fractional shares, unless the purchase of a certain number of whole shares is specified, at the NAV per share next effective after the order is received by the Fund.

Each investment is confirmed by a year-to-date statement that provides the details of the immediate transaction, plus all prior transactions in your account during the current year. This includes the dollar amount invested, the number of shares purchased or redeemed, the price per share, and the aggregate shares owned. A transcript of all activity in your account during the previous year will be furnished each January. By retaining each annual summary and the last year-to-date statement, you have a complete detailed history of your account that provides necessary tax information.

Upon purchase, the proper number of full and fractional shares are credited to your account and confirmed by the Fund's transfer agent (the "Transfer Agent"), U.S. Bank Global Fund Services, ("Fund Services").

Retirement Plans. Shares may be purchased by virtually all types of tax-deferred retirement plans. Please contact the Fund at 1-800-443-4693 to obtain plan forms and/or custody agreements for the following:

- Individual retirement accounts
- Roth IRAs
- Coverdell education savings accounts
- Simplified employee pension plans

U.S. Bank, N.A. serves as fiduciary and custodian of the above-mentioned retirement plans. Dividends and other distributions will be automatically reinvested without a sales charge. For further details, including rights of revocation, fees charged, tax consequences and redemption information, see the specific plan documents that can be obtained from the Fund. Investors should consult with their tax advisor before establishing any of the tax-deferred retirement plans listed above.

The Fund reserves the right in its sole discretion to withdraw all or any part of the offering made by the Prospectus or to reject purchase orders when, in the judgment of management, such withdrawal or rejection is in the best interest of the Fund and its shareholders.

The Fund may accept investments in kind of stocks based on judgments as to whether, in each case, acceptance of stock will allow the Fund to acquire the stock at no more than the net cost of acquiring it through normal channels, and whether the stock has restrictions on its sale by the Fund under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended ("1933 Act"). Fund shares purchased in exchange for stocks are issued at NAV.

The Fund reserves the right to refuse to accept orders for Fund shares unless accompanied by payment.

REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Fund will not be responsible for the consequences of delays, including delays in the banking or Federal Reserve wire systems. The Transfer Agent cannot process transaction requests that are not complete and in good order as defined in the Prospectus.

The right of redemption may be suspended, or the date of payment postponed beyond the normal seven-day period by the Board of Trustees under the following conditions authorized by the 1940 Act: (1) for any period (a) during which the NYSE is closed, other than customary weekend and holiday closing, or (b) during which trading on the NYSE is restricted; (2) for any period during which an emergency exists as a result of which (a) disposal by the Fund of securities owned by it is not reasonably practicable or (b) it is not reasonably practicable for the Fund to determine the fair value of its net assets; or (3) for such other periods as the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") may by order permit for the protection of the Fund's shareholders.

All redemption and repurchase payments will be made by check, except that if the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the remaining Stockholders, redemptions and repurchases may be made in kind from the portfolio of the Fund, in lieu of cash, taking such securities at their value employed in determining NAV, and selecting the securities in such manner as the Board of Trustees may deem fair and equitable. Redemptions made in kind are taxable transactions. In such event, the Fund may comply with Rule 18f-1 promulgated by the SEC under Section 18(f) of the 1940 Act, pursuant to which the Fund, upon filing a notification of election with the SEC, would redeem and repurchase Shares solely in cash during any 90-day period for any one Stockholder up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1% of the NAV of the Fund at the beginning of such 90-day period. In the event of redemptions or repurchases in kind, a stockholder may incur brokerage commissions in realizing cash thereon.

Because the NAV of a Share fluctuates as a result of changes in the value of securities owned by the Fund, the amount received upon redemption may be more or less than the amount paid for such Shares.

Systematic Withdrawal Plan. The payments specified by an investor will be made out of the proceeds of redemption of Shares credited to his account. Accordingly, since the withdrawal payments represent the proceeds for Share redemptions, an investor's invested capital will be reduced to the extent that withdrawal payments exceed the income dividends and capital gain distributions paid and reinvested on his Shares. Continued withdrawals in excess of current income risk the exhaustion of invested capital.

All dividends and other distributions on Shares are reinvested in additional Shares at the NAV per Share, that is, without sales charge.

ABANDONED PROPERTY

It is important that the Fund maintain a correct address for each investor. An incorrect address may cause an investor's account statements and other mailings to be returned to the Fund. Based upon statutory requirements for returned mail, the Fund will attempt to locate the investor or rightful owner of the account. If the Fund is unable to locate the investor, it will determine whether the investor's account has legally been abandoned. Mutual fund accounts may be transferred to the state government of an investor's state of residence if no activity occurs within the account during the "inactivity period" specified in the applicable state's abandoned property laws, which vary by state. The Fund is legally obligated to escheat (or transfer) abandoned property to the appropriate state's unclaimed property administrator in accordance with statutory requirements. The investor's last known address of record determines which state has jurisdiction. Please proactively contact the Transfer Agent at least annually to ensure your account remains in active status. Investors who are residents of the state of Texas may designate a representative to receive legislatively required unclaimed property due diligence notifications. Please contact the Fund to complete a Texas Designation of Representative form.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES

Information About Adviser. Evercore Wealth Management, LLC, the Fund's investment adviser, with principal offices at 55 East 52nd Street, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10055 is a Delaware limited liability company. The Adviser has served as the investment adviser to the Fund and the Predecessor Fund since May 1, 2010.

The following table sets forth the name of the parent company of the Adviser as of the date of this SAI, and shows the basis of control of the Adviser. The parent company's address is 55 East 52nd Street, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10055. No person other than the entity named below owns 25% or more of the voting securities of the Adviser.

Name	Entity in Which Interest is Owned
Evercore Partners Services East, LLC	Evercore Wealth Management, LLC

The Advisory Agreement. The Adviser furnishes investment advisory research, statistical and managerial services and provides the Fund with a continuous investment program pursuant to an Investment Advisory Contract (the "Advisory Agreement"). Under the Advisory Agreement the Fund pays its own expenses including interest charges; taxes; costs of purchasing and selling securities for its portfolio; rent of office space; expenses of redemption of shares; auditing and legal expenses; expenses attributable to setting the type for and printing only such copies of prospectuses as are filed with any federal or state agency, regulatory authority or governmental department; trustees' fees and expenses necessarily incurred by trustees in attendance at trustees' meetings; expenses of administrative personnel and administrative services; custodian fees; fees of the Transfer Agent, the registrar and the dividend disbursing agent; cost of stock certificates and corporate reports; all other printing expenses not specifically allocated to the Adviser under the Agreement; costs in connection with Board meetings and meetings of Stockholders, including proxy material preparation and distribution, filing fees, dues, insurance premiums, miscellaneous management and operating expenses and expenses of an extraordinary and nonrecurring nature.

The Advisory Agreement provides that it shall continue in effect for a period of two years from its effective date and that it may be continued from year to year thereafter only if specifically approved at least annually by a vote of a majority of the Board of Trustees, or by the vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. In either case, each continuance must be approved by a majority vote of the trustees who are not parties to such contract or "interested persons" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of any such party to such contract (other than as trustees of the Trust) cast in person at a meeting called for that purpose.

The Advisory Agreement may be amended or modified only by the vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities and a majority of the Board of Trustees, including a majority of such trustees who are not parties of the Agreement or "interested persons" (as so defined) of any such party (other than as trustees of the Fund).

The Advisory Agreement may be terminated, without penalty, on 60 days' written notice to the Adviser, by the Board of Trustees or by the vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities. It automatically terminates upon its "assignment" within the meaning of Section 2(a)(4) of the 1940 Act.

Description of the Advisory Fee. The Advisory Agreement provides for an advisory fee equal to 0.75% of the Fund's average daily net assets on an annualized basis. Such advisory fee is calculated and paid monthly. The tables below set forth, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the management fees payable to the Adviser by the Fund; the amount of the advisory fees and Fund operating expenses waived or reimbursed by the Adviser, or the expenses reimbursed by the Fund, in accordance with the expense limitation agreement described below; and the net advisory fees paid by the Fund to the Adviser after giving effect to any waivers by the Adviser or reimbursement by the Fund:

Advisory Fees Paid by Fund to the Adviser						
Fiscal Year Ended	Advisory Fee Accrued	Advisory Fees (Waived)/Recouped	Advisory Fee After Fees (Waived)/Recouped			
December 31, 2024	\$3,440,030	\$0	\$3,440,030			
December 31, 2023	\$2,660,697	\$0	\$2,660,697			
December 31, 2022	\$2,455,225	\$0	\$2,455,225			

Expense Limitation. The Adviser has contractually agreed to waive all or a portion of its agreed to advisory fees with respect to the Fund under the Advisory Agreement, and to reimburse the Fund for operating expenses it incurs to the extent necessary to ensure that the total operating expenses (excluding all federal, state and local taxes, interest, dividends and interest on short positions, acquired fund fees and expenses, brokerage commissions and other costs incurred in connection with the purchase and sale of securities and extraordinary items) of the Fund do not exceed 1.00% of the Fund's average daily net assets annually. This expense limitation agreement will continue in effect until April 30, 2026, with successive renewal terms of one year unless terminated by the Board of Trustees prior to any such renewal. The Adviser has a right to receive reimbursement from the Fund for fee reductions and/or expense payments made pursuant to the expense limitation agreement in the prior three fiscal years, provided that after giving effect to such reimbursement total operating expenses (excluding all federal, state and local taxes, interest, dividends and interest on short positions, acquired fund fees and expenses, brokerage commissions and other costs incurred in connection with the purchase and sale of securities and extraordinary items) of the Fund do not exceed 1.00% of the Fund's average daily net assets in the year of reimbursement. As of December 31, 2024, the Adviser has recouped all eligible previously waived expenses.

Portfolio Managers. Timothy Evnin, Partner and Portfolio Manager of the Adviser, Charles D. Ryan, Partner and Portfolio Manager of the Adviser, and Michael Seppelt, CFA, Partner and Portfolio Manager of the Adviser (the "Portfolio Managers"), are responsible for the investment management of the Fund.

The following table provides information regarding other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of December 31, 2024:

Category of Account	Total Number of Accounts Managed	Total Assets in Accounts Managed	Number of Accounts for which Advisory Fee is Based on Performance	Assets in Accounts for which Advisory Fee is Based on Performance
Timothy Evnin				
Other Registered Investment	0	\$0	0	\$O
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Accounts	264	\$989.317 million	0	\$0
<u>Charles D. Ryan</u>				
Other Registered Investment	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	1	\$55.749 million	0	\$0
Other Accounts	182	\$1,223.441 million	0	\$0
Michael Seppelt				
Other Registered Investment	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Accounts	258	\$680.214 million	0	\$0

Material Conflict of Interest. Where conflicts of interest arise between the Fund and other accounts managed by the Portfolio Managers, the Portfolio Managers will proceed in a manner that ensures that the Fund will not be treated materially less favorably. There may be instances where similar portfolio transactions may be executed for the same security for numerous accounts managed by the Portfolio Managers. In such instances, securities will be allocated in accordance with the Adviser's trade allocation policy. In addition, the Fund's Code of Ethics sets forth principles for employee personal securities transactions in a manner to avoid any potential or actual conflicts of interest with Fund clients.

Compensation. As of December 31, 2024, the Portfolio Managers' compensation is made up of a fixed base salary augmented by optional participation in the Adviser's retirement, health and welfare benefits program, as well as an annual variable discretionary bonus which may be comprised of cash, stock or deferred compensation, and is based on the achievement of investment and non-investment related professional goals. All such compensation is paid by the Adviser and this structure is used for the Portfolio Managers regardless of the type of account they manage for the Adviser. The value of the assets held in the Fund's portfolio over the previous year and the Fund's pre- and post-tax performance against the S&P 500 index may be among the factors the Adviser considers when determining the Portfolio Managers' annual variable discretionary bonus.

Securities Owned in the Fund by Portfolio Managers. As of December 31, 2024, the Portfolio Managers beneficially owned shares of the Fund as follows:

Name of Portfolio Manager	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Fund
Timothy Evnin	over \$1,000,000
Charles Ryan	\$100,001 - \$500,000
Michael Seppelt	\$500,001 - \$1,000,000

The Underwriting Agreement. Pursuant to a distribution agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with Quasar Distributors, LLC, Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, Maine 04101, the Distributor acts as the Fund's principal underwriter, provides certain administration services and promotes and arranges for the sale of the Fund's shares. The offering of the Fund's shares is continuous. The Distributor is a registered broker-dealer and member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA"). The Distributor is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Foreside Distributors, LLC.

The Distribution Agreement has an initial term of up to two years and will continue in effect only if such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by the Board of Trustees or by vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities and, in either case, by a majority of the Trustees who are not parties to the Distribution Agreement or "interested persons" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of any such party. The Distribution Agreement is terminable without penalty by the Fund on 60 days' written notice when authorized either by a majority vote of the Fund's shareholders or by vote of a majority of the of Trustees, including a majority of the Trustees who are not "interested persons" (as so defined) of the Fund, or by the Distributor on 60 days' written notice, and will automatically terminate in the event of its "assignment" (as defined in the 1940 Act).

During the Fund fiscal years ended December 31, 2022 through 2024, neither the Distributor nor the Adviser received any underwriting commissions.

Administrator. Pursuant to a Fund Administrative Services Agreement, Fund Services is the Fund's administrator. As such, Fund Services provides certain administrative services, such as compliance monitoring, regulatory filings, financial, shareholder, regulatory and tax reporting, and state registrations. The Fund incurred the following expenses for fund administration services provided by Fund Services during the previous three fiscal years:

Fund Administrative Expenses For Fiscal Years Ended December 31,					
<u>2024</u>	<u>2023</u>	<u>2022</u>			
\$456,003	\$368,768	\$348,622			

Fund Accounting and Transfer Agent. Fund Services, 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 53202, serves as Fund Accountant and Transfer Agent to the Fund pursuant to a Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement and a Transfer Agent Servicing Agreement. Under the Fund Accounting Servicing Agreement, Fund Services will provide portfolio accounting services, expense accrual and payment services, fund valuation and financial reporting services, tax accounting services and compliance control services. Fund Services will receive a fund accounting fee from the Fund, which will be billed on a monthly basis. Under the Transfer Agent Servicing Agreement, Fund Services will provide all of the customary services of a transfer agent and dividend disbursing agent including, but not limited to: (1) receiving and processing orders to purchase or redeem shares; (2) mailing shareholder reports and prospectuses to current shareholders; and (3) providing blue sky services to monitor the number of

Fund shares sold in each state. Fund Services will receive a transfer agent fee, which will be billed on a monthly basis.

Custodian. The Custodian for the Fund is U.S. Bank, N.A., 1555 N. River Center Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, WI 53212, an affiliate of Fund Services. As Custodian, U.S. Bank, N.A. holds all of securities and cash owned by the Fund.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. Cohen & Company, Ltd., is the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm, providing audit services, and assistance with respect to the preparation of filings with the SEC for the Fund. Cohen & Company Advisory, LLC, an affiliate of Cohen & Company, Ltd., provides tax services as requested.

PROXY VOTING GUIDELINES

These guidelines are designed to reflect the fiduciary duty to vote proxies in favor of shareholder interests. In determining votes, the Adviser will not subordinate the economic interest of the Fund to any other entity or interested party. The following guidelines will be used for each of the following four categories of issues:

Routine Proposals. Routine proposals are those that do not change the structure, bylaws, or operations of the corporation to the detriment of the shareholders. Given the routine nature of these proposals, proxies will nearly always be voted with management. Traditionally, these issues include:

- Approval of auditors
- Election of directors
- Indemnification provisions for directors
- Liability limitations of directors
- Name changes

Non-Routine Proposals. Issues in this category are more likely to affect the structure and operations of the corporation and therefore will have a greater impact on the value of a shareholder's investment. The Adviser will review each issue in this category on a case-by-case basis. As previously stated, voting decisions will be made based on the financial interest of the Fund. Non-routine matters include:

- Mergers and acquisitions
- Restructuring
- Reincorporation
- Changes in capitalization
- Increase in number of directors
- Increase in preferred stock
- Increase in common stock
- Stock option plans

Corporate Governance Proposals. Proxies will generally be voted against any management proposal that clearly has the effect of restricting the ability of shareholders to realize the full potential value of their investment. Proposals in this category would include:

- Poison pills
- Golden parachutes
- Greenmail
- Supermajority voting
- Dual class voting
- Classified boards

Shareholder Proposals. Proposals submitted by shareholders for vote usually include issues of corporate governance and other non-routine matters. Each issue will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in order to determine the position that best represents the financial interest of the Fund. Shareholder matters include:

- Annual election of directors
- Anti-poison pill
- Anti-greenmail
- Confidential voting
- Cumulative voting

Although many proxy proposals can be voted in accordance with the Adviser's proxy voting guidelines, some proposals will require special consideration, and the Adviser will make a decision on a case-by-case basis in these situations.

Where a proxy proposal raises a material conflict between the Adviser's interests and the Fund's interests, the Adviser will resolve the conflict as follows:

To the extent the Adviser is making a case-by-case determination under its proxy voting guidelines, the Adviser will disclose the conflict to the Board of Trustees and obtain the Board of Trustees' consent to vote or direct the matter to an independent third party, selected by the Board of Trustees, for a vote determination. If the Board of Trustees' consent or the independent third party's determination is not received in a timely manner, the Adviser will abstain from voting the proxy.

Information regarding how the Fund voted its proxies during the most recent twelve-month period ended June 30 is available, without charge and upon request, by calling the Fund at 1-800-443-4693, and on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM

The Fund has established an Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program (the "Program") as required by the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 ("USA PATRIOT Act"). In order to ensure compliance with this law, the Fund's Program provides for the development of internal practices, procedures and controls, designation of anti-money laundering compliance officers, an ongoing training program and an independent audit function to determine the effectiveness of the Program.

Procedures to implement the Program include, but are not limited to, determining that the Fund's distributor and the Transfer Agent have established proper anti-money laundering procedures, reporting suspicious and/or fraudulent activity, checking shareholder names against designated government lists, including Office of Foreign Asset Control ("OFAC"), and a complete and thorough review of all new opening account applications. The Fund will not transact business with any person

or legal entity whose identity and beneficial owners, if applicable, cannot be adequately verified under the provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Fund are incorporated herein by reference to the Fund's Core Financial Statements as part of Form N-CSR, filed electronically with the SEC on March 10, 2025. These financial statements include the schedule of investments, statement of assets and liabilities, statement of operations, statements of changes in net assets, financial highlights, notes and the report of the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm.

Appendix A – Description of Bond Ratings

S&P Global Ratings' ("S&P") Long-Term Issue Credit Ratings:

AAA – An obligation rated 'AAA' has the highest rating assigned by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation is extremely strong.

AA – An obligation rated 'AA' differs from the highest-rated obligations only to a small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation is very strong.

<u>A</u> – An obligation rated 'A' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher-rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation is still strong.

BBB – An obligation rated 'BBB' exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

BB, B, CCC, CC, and C – Obligations rated 'BB', 'B', 'CCC', 'CC', and 'C' are regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. 'BB' indicates the least degree of speculation and 'C' the highest. While such obligations will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these may be outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.

<u>BB</u> – An obligation rated 'BB' is less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

<u>B</u> – An obligation rated 'B' is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligations rated 'BB', but the obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

<u>CCC</u> – An obligation rated 'CCC' is currently vulnerable to nonpayment, and is dependent upon favorable business, financial, and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitments on the obligation. In the event of adverse business, financial, or economic conditions, the obligor is not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

<u>CC</u> – An obligation rated 'CC' is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment. The 'CC' rating is used when a default has not yet occurred, but S&P Global Ratings expects default to be a virtual certainty, regardless of the anticipated time to default.

 \underline{C} – An obligation rated 'C' is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment, and the obligation is expected to have lower relative seniority or lower ultimate recovery compared to obligations that are rated higher.

<u>**D**</u> – An obligation rated 'D' is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the 'D' rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within five business days in the absence of a stated grace period or within the earlier of the stated grace period or 30 calendar days. The 'D' rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to 'D' if it is subject to a distressed debt restructuring.

<u>NR</u> – This indicates that a rating has not been assigned or is no longer assigned.

<u>**Plus (+) or Minus (-)**</u> – The ratings from 'AA' to 'CCC' may be modified by the addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.'s ("Moody's") Global Long-Term Rating Scale:

<u>Aaa</u> – Obligations rated Aaa are judged to be of the highest quality and are subject to the lowest level of credit risk.

<u>Aa</u> – Obligations rated Aa are judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk.

<u>A</u> – Obligations rated A are judged to be upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk.

Baa – Obligations rated Baa are judged to be medium-grade and are subject to moderate credit risk, and as such may possess certain speculative characteristics.

<u>Ba</u> – Obligations rated Ba are judged to be speculative and are subject to substantial credit risk.

<u>B</u> – Obligations rated B are considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk.

<u>Caa</u> – Obligations rated Caa are judged to be speculative, of poor standing and are subject to very high credit risk.

<u>Ca</u> – Obligations rated Ca are highly speculative and are likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of principal and interest.

<u>C</u> – Obligations rated C are the lowest rated and are typically in default, with little prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

Modifiers: Moody's appends numerical modifiers 1, 2, and 3 to each generic rating classification from Aa through Caa. The modifier 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category; the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking; and the modifier 3 indicates a ranking in the lower end of that generic rating category. Additionally, a "(hyb)" indicator is appended to all ratings of hybrid securities issued by banks, insurers, finance companies, and securities firms. By their terms, hybrid securities allow for the omission of scheduled dividends, interest, or principal payments, which can potentially result in impairment if such an omission occurs. Hybrid securities may also be subject to contractually allowable write-downs of principal that could result in impairment. Together with the hybrid indicator, the long-term obligation rating assigned to a hybrid security is an expression of the relative credit risk associated with that security.

S&P's Short-Term Issue Credit Ratings:

A-1 – A short-term obligation rated 'A-1' is rated in the highest category by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation is strong. Within this category, certain obligations are designated with a plus sign (+). This indicates that the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on these obligations is extremely strong.

<u>A-2</u> - A short-term obligation rated 'A-2' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rating categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation is satisfactory.

<u>A-3</u> - A short-term obligation rated 'A-3' exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

<u>B</u> - A short-term obligation rated 'B' is regarded as vulnerable and has significant speculative characteristics. The obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments; however, it faces major ongoing uncertainties which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.

 \underline{C} - A short-term obligation rated 'C' is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial, and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.

D - A short-term obligation rated 'D' is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the 'D' rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within any stated grace period. However, any stated grace period longer than five business days will be treated as five business days. The "D" rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to 'D' if it is subject to a distressed debt restructuring.

Dual Ratings – S&P may assign "dual" ratings to debt issues that have a put option or demand feature. The first component of the rating addresses the likelihood of repayment of principal and interest as due, and the second component of the rating addresses only the demand feature. The first component of the rating can relate to either a short-term or long-term transaction and accordingly use either short-term or long-term rating symbols. The second component of the rating relates to the put option and is assigned a short-term rating symbol (for example, 'AAA/A-1+' or 'A-1+/A-1'). With U.S. municipal short-term demand debt, the U.S. municipal short-term note rating symbols are used for the first component of the rating (for example, 'SP-1+/A-1+').

<u>NR</u> -- This indicates that a rating has not been assigned or is no longer assigned.

Moody's Global Short-Term Rating Scale:

P-1 - Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-1 have a superior ability to repay short-term debt obligations.

P-2 - Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-2 have a strong ability to repay short-term debt obligations.

P-3 - Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-3 have an acceptable ability to repay short-term obligations.

NP - Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Not Prime do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.